
Wednesday, June 30, 2021

NOTICE: Per Courthouse reopening guidelines adopted 06/02/2021, public meetings may 

be attended by the public if a person requests to be part of the published agenda. 

Meeting room occupancy will be limited so that 15 square feet per occupant can be 

maintained. To access and participate in meetings remotely, please call 641-939-8108 for 

meeting information.

Call To Order
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes

06-23-2021 MINUTES.PDF
06-23-2021 CHAT LOG.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 6.30.21.PDF

Emergency Management Update

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

Emily Schwickerath, Re: Update From Rep. Feenstra ’s Office

Public Comments

Motion To Revise/Clarify Courthouse Entry Policy

Action On Return Of In-Person Public Attendance At Meetings 

Application For Iowa State Recreational Trails Grant – River ’s Edge Trail

IOWA RIVERS EDGE TRAIL SRT GRANT 2021.PDF

Donna Juber, Re: Discussion On Mowing

Application For Liquor License – Pine Lake Country Club

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION - PINE LAKE COUNTRY CLUB.PDF

Fiscal Year 2022 Fuel Bids

FY 2021/2022 Appropriations Resolution

APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION FY 2022.PDF

Resolution For Inter-Fund Operating Transfers

RESOLUTION FOR INTER-FUND OPERATING TRANSFERS FY 2022.PDF

2021/2022 Advance Issuance Of Payments Resolution

ADVANCE ISSUANCE OF PAYMENTS RESOLUTION FY 2022.PDF

Resolution For Budget Appropriation Adjustments Within The Same Service Area

RESOLUTION FOR BUDGET APPROPRIATION ADJUSTMENTS FY 2022.PDF

Resolution On Direct Report Misconduct

RESOLUTION ON DIRECT REPORT MISCONDUCT.PDF

Change Of Status – Community Services

CHANGE OF STATUS - COMMUNITY SERVICES.PDF

Changes Of Status – Sheriff’s Office

CHANGES OF STATUS - SHERIFFS OFFICE.PDF

Changes Of Status – Treasurer ’s Office

CHANGES OF STATUS - TREASURERS OFFICE.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage
Courthouse Large Conference Room

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Documents:

13.

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

Documents:

17.

Documents:

18.

Documents:

19.

Documents:

20.

Documents:

21.

Documents:

22.

Documents:

23.

Documents:

24.

25.

26. 9:30 A.M.



Wednesday, June 30, 2021

NOTICE: Per Courthouse reopening guidelines adopted 06/02/2021, public meetings may 

be attended by the public if a person requests to be part of the published agenda. 

Meeting room occupancy will be limited so that 15 square feet per occupant can be 

maintained. To access and participate in meetings remotely, please call 641-939-8108 for 

meeting information.

Call To Order
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes

06-23-2021 MINUTES.PDF
06-23-2021 CHAT LOG.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 6.30.21.PDF

Emergency Management Update

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

Emily Schwickerath, Re: Update From Rep. Feenstra ’s Office

Public Comments

Motion To Revise/Clarify Courthouse Entry Policy

Action On Return Of In-Person Public Attendance At Meetings 

Application For Iowa State Recreational Trails Grant – River ’s Edge Trail

IOWA RIVERS EDGE TRAIL SRT GRANT 2021.PDF

Donna Juber, Re: Discussion On Mowing

Application For Liquor License – Pine Lake Country Club

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION - PINE LAKE COUNTRY CLUB.PDF

Fiscal Year 2022 Fuel Bids

FY 2021/2022 Appropriations Resolution

APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION FY 2022.PDF

Resolution For Inter-Fund Operating Transfers

RESOLUTION FOR INTER-FUND OPERATING TRANSFERS FY 2022.PDF

2021/2022 Advance Issuance Of Payments Resolution

ADVANCE ISSUANCE OF PAYMENTS RESOLUTION FY 2022.PDF

Resolution For Budget Appropriation Adjustments Within The Same Service Area

RESOLUTION FOR BUDGET APPROPRIATION ADJUSTMENTS FY 2022.PDF

Resolution On Direct Report Misconduct

RESOLUTION ON DIRECT REPORT MISCONDUCT.PDF

Change Of Status – Community Services

CHANGE OF STATUS - COMMUNITY SERVICES.PDF

Changes Of Status – Sheriff’s Office

CHANGES OF STATUS - SHERIFFS OFFICE.PDF

Changes Of Status – Treasurer ’s Office

CHANGES OF STATUS - TREASURERS OFFICE.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage
Courthouse Large Conference Room

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Documents:

13.

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

Documents:

17.

Documents:

18.

Documents:

19.

Documents:

20.

Documents:

21.

Documents:

22.

Documents:

23.

Documents:

24.

25.

26. 9:30 A.M.



Wednesday, June 30, 2021

NOTICE: Per Courthouse reopening guidelines adopted 06/02/2021, public meetings may 

be attended by the public if a person requests to be part of the published agenda. 

Meeting room occupancy will be limited so that 15 square feet per occupant can be 

maintained. To access and participate in meetings remotely, please call 641-939-8108 for 

meeting information.

Call To Order
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes

06-23-2021 MINUTES.PDF
06-23-2021 CHAT LOG.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 6.30.21.PDF

Emergency Management Update

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

Emily Schwickerath, Re: Update From Rep. Feenstra ’s Office

Public Comments

Motion To Revise/Clarify Courthouse Entry Policy

Action On Return Of In-Person Public Attendance At Meetings 

Application For Iowa State Recreational Trails Grant – River ’s Edge Trail

IOWA RIVERS EDGE TRAIL SRT GRANT 2021.PDF

Donna Juber, Re: Discussion On Mowing

Application For Liquor License – Pine Lake Country Club

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION - PINE LAKE COUNTRY CLUB.PDF

Fiscal Year 2022 Fuel Bids

FY 2021/2022 Appropriations Resolution

APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION FY 2022.PDF

Resolution For Inter-Fund Operating Transfers

RESOLUTION FOR INTER-FUND OPERATING TRANSFERS FY 2022.PDF

2021/2022 Advance Issuance Of Payments Resolution

ADVANCE ISSUANCE OF PAYMENTS RESOLUTION FY 2022.PDF

Resolution For Budget Appropriation Adjustments Within The Same Service Area

RESOLUTION FOR BUDGET APPROPRIATION ADJUSTMENTS FY 2022.PDF

Resolution On Direct Report Misconduct

RESOLUTION ON DIRECT REPORT MISCONDUCT.PDF

Change Of Status – Community Services

CHANGE OF STATUS - COMMUNITY SERVICES.PDF

Changes Of Status – Sheriff’s Office

CHANGES OF STATUS - SHERIFFS OFFICE.PDF

Changes Of Status – Treasurer ’s Office

CHANGES OF STATUS - TREASURERS OFFICE.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage
Courthouse Large Conference Room

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Documents:

13.

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

Documents:

17.

Documents:

18.

Documents:

19.

Documents:

20.

Documents:

21.

Documents:

22.

Documents:

23.

Documents:

24.

25.

26. 9:30 A.M.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/a8b03bba-0de7-486d-9d5d-45904bf6520e


HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES – JUNE 23, 2021
WEDNESDAY  -  9:00 A.M.

COURTHOUSE LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM

Chair BJ Hoffman called the meeting to order.  Also present were Supervisors Reneé McClellan
and Lance Granzow; and Michael Pearce, Lori Kadner, Thomas Craighton, Taylor Roll, Darrell
Meyer, Lee Gallentine, and Angela Silvey.  Attending via Zoom: Carey Callaway, JD Holmes,
Justin Ites, Dave McDaniel, Cheryl Lawrence, Elaine Loring, Julie Duhn, Lisa Lawler, Curt
Groen, Rocky Reents, Jessica Sheridan, Tifani Eisentrager, Megan Harrell, Pauline Lloyd, and
Laura Cunningham.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the agenda as posted.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the minutes of June 16, 2021 and June 21,
2021.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the June 23, 2021 claims for payment.  Motion
carried.

Emergency Management Update:
Emergency Management Coordinator Thomas Craighton advised a text message that went out to
Hardin County Alerts subscribers was legitimate.  

Utility Permits: None.

Secondary Roads:
County Engineer Taylor Roll updated the Board on paving and bridge projects.  In addition, Roll
and Hoffman reminded the public that Iowa Code prohibits the mowing and baling of roadside
vegetation prior to July 15.

Public Comments:
Julie Duhn requested to be able to comment during a discussion appearing later on the agenda.

Questions and comments were received from Pauline Lloyd.

Discussion was held on return of in-person public attendance at meetings.  Craighton
recommended implementing a badge system, administered by Security, which would allow 17
people in the Large Conference Room, the maximum occupancy allowed per fire safety
guidelines.  Duhn and Lloyd provided input.  It was decided that Craighton will reevaluate
meeting room space, and the Board will act on new in-person attendance guidelines at its June
30, 2021 meeting.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the application for fireworks permit submitted
by Gehrke’s Lake and Campground, for July 3, 2021, at 19747 205th Street, Iowa Falls.
Hoffman noted that if the county is under a burn ban on the date of the fireworks display, the
permit is void.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the Timbers Edge Wedding & Event Center
Liquor License Application for Class C Liquor, for a term of 12 months, effective 06/20/2021.
Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the renewal with Heartland Insurance Risk
Pool.  Motion carried.  

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the updated Emergency Mode of Operations
Plan for Community Services.  Motion carried. 

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the engagement letter with Bowman & Miller,
P.C.  Motion carried.



Discussion was held on appropriations for FY 2021/2022.  Granzow suggested appropriating
100% of budgets to offices/departments that require full appropriation amounts by statute, and
75% of budgets to all other offices/departments.  Neither McClellan nor Hoffman offered
differing opinions.  Granzow will inform Auditor Jolene Pieters.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the pay increase of Renee Springston, part-
time Attorney’s Office staff, to $15.50/hour, effective 07/01/2021.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the pay increase of Christopher Klein,
Assistant County Attorney, to $74,000/year, effective 07/01/2021.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the pay increase of Carol Fletcher, Attorney’s
Office Manager, to $42,280/year, effective 07/01/2021.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the pay increase of Cliff Cory, Paralegal, to
$46,148/year, effective 07/01/2021.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the hiring of Justin Goedken, Roadside
Vegetation Specialist, at a rate of $21.00/hour, effective 07/12/2021.  Goedken is eligible for
$0.25/hour raise after completing a 6-month probationary period.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the demotion requested by Jason Fults, from
full-time Jail Sergeant to full-time Correctional Officer, at a rate of $20.52/hour, effective
06/15/2021.  Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the resignation of Scott Bright, part-time
Correctional Officer, effective 06/21/2021.  Motion carried.

Other Business: None.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried.

At 10:33 a.m. Chair Hoffman reconvened the meeting.  Also present were Supervisors
McClellan and Granzow; and Darrell Meyer, Wes Wiese, Kirk Rice, Trent Lambert, Al Kadolph,
and Angela Silvey.  Attendees via Zoom: None.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the agenda as posted.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to go into closed session pursuant to Iowa Code Section
21.5(1)(j) to discuss real estate matters.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” McClellan, Granzow, and
Hoffman.  “Nays” None.  The Board entered closed session at 10:33 a.m.

Following discussion, McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to return to open session.  Roll Call
Vote: “Ayes” McClellan, Granzow, and Hoffman.  “Nays” None.  Motion carried.  Closed
session ended at 11:27 p.m.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried.

_____________________________ _____________________________
BJ Hoffman, Chair                                        Jolene Pieters           

Board of Supervisors                                                           Hardin County Auditor





6/25/2021 4:08:28 PM Page 1 of 2

Vendor Publication Report
Hardin County Payment Date Range: 06/30/2021 - 06/30/2021

Vendor Name Total PaymentsVendor Number

Alliant Energy 37.304253V

Century Laundry Distributing, Inc 107.7363307V

CenturyLink 2956 108.014569V

Cerro Gordo County Treasurer 293.0062488V

Cintas 194.622475V

City of New Providence 28.88515V

Clarion Distributing 385.00227V

Contech Engineered Solutions 16,125.002398V

Cristine A Birks 767.142919V

Eldora Hardware 6.992647V

Eric Eugenio 305.20100207

GECRB/AMAZON 279.162403V

Greenbelt Home Care 500.8461807V

Hardin County Historical Library 40.00100893

Interstate Batteries 38.60880V

Iowa Drainage District Association 1,947.90100809

IP Pathways 1,409.082217V

Jason D Leverton 150.00328E

JB Distributing Co., Inc 210.1661724V

Jody L Mesch 40.0058E

John Deere Financial 220.611394V

Jolene Pieters 30.78100895

Joseph Donald 112.70367V

Kathy Houck 80.00100625

KDAO-FM 449.00100894

Knight Sanitation 172.00993V

Landon D Janes 150.0019E

Mail Services LLC 605.8863827V

Marcia M. Clark 39.50100706

Martin Marietta Aggregate 93,363.724141V

Matt Clark 200.00100636

Mid-America Publishing Corp 91.4262056V

North Iowa Mercy Clinics 87.00100854

Perry AG Services, Inc. 10,460.00100574

Polk County Treasurer 184.7762794V

Port53 Technologies, Inc 12,393.00100897

Quaker Security LLC 2,550.00100507

Quality Automotive Inc 36.5061237V

R Comm LLC 3,000.0063277V

RC Systems- Waterloo Office 1,785.962077V

Safety-Kleen Corporation 400.002103V

Storey Kenworthy 85.4061798V

Summit Food Service LLC 4,723.422332V

Taylor Roll 150.00423E

Terry W Clemons 64.19619E

Thomas Craighton 31.24100361

Times Citizen 75.36538V

Vanguard Appraisals, Inc 1,550.005433V

Verlyn Mensing 160.00100703

VISA 2,323.97150V

Weikert Contracting 13,200.00100898

William J Hoffman 348.81596E

Windstream Communications 210.4362349V

Xerox Financial Services 2,120.03100896

Youth & Shelter Services Inc 1,446.151896V



Vendor Publication Report Payment Date Range: 06/30/2021 - 06/30/2021

6/25/2021 4:08:28 PM Page 2 of 2

Vendor Name Total PaymentsVendor Number

Ziegler Incorporated 170.641463V

176,047.09Grand Total:



Hardin	County

Chris	Wieting,	Chair,	Hardin	County	Trails	Commission

1215	Edgington	Ave
Eldora IA 50627

641-373-6986 chris.wieting@thrivent.com

Iowa	River's	Edge	Trail,	Paving	from	Hwy	175	in	Eldora	to	260th	Street

This	phase	of	the	Iowa	River's	Edge	Trail	would	continue	the	development	from	the	trail's	previous	phase's
terminus	at	Highway	175	in	Eldora	an	additional	2	miles	to	260th	Street	outside	of	Gifford.	Funding	would
support	the	engineering	and	construction	of	this	phase.

2



$120,000.00

$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$300,000.00

$700,000.00

FRT $300,000.00

REAP/LAWCON $190,000.00

Wellmark/Doppelt/Local	Funding $210,000.00

$80,000.00

There	are	currently	no	other	state	funds	involved	in	this	phase	of	the	project.	However,	it	is	anticipated	that
additional	state	dollars	will	be	secured.

There	are	currently	no	federal	funds	involved	in	this	phase	of	the	project.	However,	it	is	anticipated	that
additional	federal	dollars	will	be	leveraged.	Federal	dollars	will	likely	be	unavailable	until	later	in	the	project
and,	therefore,	will	be	used	for	construction	so	that	design	work	can	begin	immediately	with	state	and	local
funding.

October 3, 2022

October 1, 2021

May 2, 2022



✔

✔

October	01,	2021

November	01,	2022

December	31,	2021

January	31,	2023



✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



Hardin	County	Board	of	Supervisors



A 
 

Item A - Narrative 

The proposed project is to surface another 2 miles of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail from Highway 175 in 

Eldora to 260th Street just north of Gifford. The site, which has already been secured, is a past railroad 

corridor -- an excellent trail location never exceeding a 5% grade. The corridor is completely separate 

from roadways, making it scenic and safe for trail users. The funding requested will be used for 

preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and the construction of a concrete trail. This project 

will be a part of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail, a 34-mile corridor running from Steamboat Rock to 

Marshalltown, connecting two counties and the communities of Steamboat Rock, Eldora, Gifford, 

Union, Marshalltown, Liscomb, and Albion. 

Hardin County requests $300,000 in funding from SRT to pave an additional 2 miles of the Iowa 

River’s Edge Trail from Eldora to 260th street just north of Gifford. The project is ready to go if 

awarded funding. Paving of the proposed 2 miles is a continuation of a segment that is scheduled to 

begin in 2021. We are confident the design and permitting work will be similar to the current project, 

which will keep additional engineering needs to a minimum.  

 

  



B 
 

Item B – Narrative 

1. Define the need for the project in terms of the population to be served and existing trails in the 

area. (25 points) 

The proposed 2-mile paving project will cut through the heart of Eldora, a bustling small town adjacent 

to the Iowa River and home to 2,645 people. Eldora is one of the largest towns in the area and is home to 

a variety of valuable amenities that have made this small community an important central hub for 

recreation, education, and shopping. Communities in the surrounding area come to Eldora to pick up 

their groceries, take their children to the aquatic center, and watch movies at the Eldora Grand Theater. 

This trail segment will be within mere blocks of these amenities, letting Eldora community members and 

visitors enjoy what Eldora has to offer on foot or by bike. 

The construction of an additional 2 miles of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail from Eldora to Gifford is a 

central building block in the endeavor to connect a collection small towns in Central Iowa. The proposed 

phase expands on the strategy to open sections of trail where residents and tourists have the greatest 

opportunity to use the trail immediately. Eventually, the Iowa River’s Edge Trail will connect to 

Marshalltown, a large, centrally located, regional destination that is highlighted by many Iowa tourism 

companies. 

As of now, 2 bridges and 3.2 miles of paved trail have been constructed from Steamboat Rock south 

toward Eldora, and additional funding has been secured to pave another 4.4 miles of the trail to Hwy 175 

in Eldora. Construction is also anticipated on 7 more bridges from Eldora toward Gifford in 2022, 

making a continuous corridor from Steamboat Rock to the South Fork of the Iowa River. This project 

will pave an additional 2 miles, bringing the portion of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail in Hardin County 

closer to completion with more than half of their 19 miles of trails paved. The remaining corridor to be 

paved in Hardin County will be phased into manageable segments, connecting communities and 

landmarks. 

Paving of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail also works to close a gap in the Great American Rail Trail and the 

American Discovery Trail. Both of these nationally significant trail corridors incorporate the Iowa 

River’s Edge Trail into their routes. The Great American Rail Trail is the newest of the nationally 

significant efforts being constructed and is being supported by the Rails to Trails Conservancy (RTC). 

RTC has been a vocal champion for the Iowa River’s Edge Trail, helping to identify private funding 

opportunities and supporting the trail committee’s application for a Federal Transportation and 

Infrastructure Member Designated Project.  

 

2. Describe the compatibility with local, area-wide, regional, or statewide plans. (15 points)  

Multiple state, local, and regional plans support the ongoing vison of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail. The 

result is the political and social support of thousands of Iowans in the region. Below are planning 

documents which support the continued funding of this project.   

Eldora Comprehensive Plan 



B 
 

The Iowa River’s Edge Trail is a key element in promoting regional tourism that has been supported by 

the City of Eldora for over 30 years. In 2012, citizens and leaders of Eldora came together to develop the 

Eldora Comprehensive Plan, which stresses the following goals:  

 Keep up promoting access to natural areas: Project organizers have developed promotional 

materials and an online presence with a web page and Facebook posts to raise awareness of the 

project and promote outdoor recreation. 

 Connecting trails should be a priority to encourage tourism: The submitted project of the Iowa 

River’s Edge Trail will link to the Eldora Community Trail and the Pine Lake Trail creating a 

10-mile loop. Such a connection will attract more users to the area, ultimately increasing 

tourism.  

 Make vacation industry a part of the economy: The combination of the above two 

recommendations accomplished by the Iowa River Trail will inevitably lead to growing the 

vacation industry in this region’s economy.  

Hardin County Comprehensive Plan 

The Comprehensive Plan outlines goals for Hardin County to meet in the foreseeable future, and 

specifically calls for securing the Iowa River Railroad and transforming it into a rail trail. That rail trail 

is the proposed Iowa River’s Edge Trail and is seen by the Plan as a strong economic and recreational 

opportunity for communities in Hardin County. 

“Iowa River Railroad – should rail bank the part that is being abandoned for future rail use and 

build a rail trail that could be extended to connect with Ackley – would be good economic 

development for the County and the nearby communities.”  

Iowa Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP): 

The 2018 Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP) produced by the DNR lists 5-

year priorities for natural resource, parks and outdoor recreation. The #1 priority is the availability and 

diversity of natural resources, parks and outdoor recreation opportunities that enhance the quality of life 

of Iowans. The Iowa River’s Edge Trail offers a unique downtown walking experience that will easily 

connect people with nature outside of Eldora. 

Region 6 Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 

The Region 6 Planning Commission has combined strategic planning efforts with local businesses and 

economic development personnel to create a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS).  

Preservation of the railroad corridor for trail purposes is specifically mentioned in the Region 6 

Development Initiative. This expansion of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail will help with the CEDS’s five 

main goals, as trails are shown to promote small and locally-owned businesses, healthy lifestyles, 

environmental quality, housing quality, and diverse community attractions. 

Iowa Bicycle and Pedestrian Long Range Plan 

In December 2018, when the DOT published their Iowa Bicycle and Pedestrian Long Range Plan, there 

were 1,990 miles of existing trail in Iowa and 3,047 miles of proposed trail. This shows the desire of 

Iowans to substantially increase trail mileage. The Iowa River’s Edge Trail extension will pass by 



B 
 

WinField United, an agricultural products manufacturer, giving Eldora employees an opportunity to 

commute to work on bike. Once complete, the Iowa River’s Edge Trail will add an additional 34 miles 

to the existing state trails.  

Great American Rail Trail 

In May 2019, the Rail-to-Trails Conservancy announced the 3,700-mile Great American Rail Trail 

(GART). GART is a national goal to create a cross-county trail stretching from Washington, D.C. to 

Washington State. The Iowa River Trail is included in the GART route, providing 32 necessary miles 

for this cross-county connection. This phase of the project will add 2 miles to the GART route, getting 

one step closer to connecting the United States from coast-to-coast. 

 

3. Describe the benefits of multiple uses and recreational opportunities. (20 points)  

The 34-mile Iowa River’s Edge Trail travels through the Iowa River Greenbelt, an area known as a 

recreation destination for all kinds of outdoor enthusiasts. Trail advocates know the importance of 

continuing this inclusivity as they design and construct the corridor. The connection between Eldora and 

Gifford will give both populations an opportunity to travel between one another in a way that is safe and 

enjoyable, linking together neighboring small towns in a way that offers a different method of travel and 

entertainment. 

Hiking: Passing through the city of Eldora, this trail provides an attractive route for casual hikers of all 

ages. The second half of this phase is treelined, which offers opportunities for birders and nature 

enthusiasts to encounter Iowa wildlife while they enjoy the trail. 

Fat Tire Biking/Mountain Biking: These wide-tired bikes will find an adventure traveling over 50% of 

the undeveloped portions Iowa River’s Edge Trail in Hardin County where bridges have been 

rehabilitated. 

Geocaching: The Iowa River Trail will become a geocaching hotspot. Geocaching is a very popular 

activity along the Iowa River Greenbelt. There are already several caches located along the Iowa River’s 

Edge Trail. It is anticipated that this sport will continue to grow with the completion of the trail. 

Completing this phase and future phases of the trail will increase the chances for people of all physical 

abilities and experience to participate in geocaching along the Iowa River’s Edge Trail.  

Snowmobiling: A stakeholder in the currently undeveloped trail are the Central Iowa Snowmobilers. 

This club uses the undeveloped corridor for part of their system. It is the intention of trail managers to 

not snow plow the corridor in the winter to continue to allow its use by this group. 

Cross-Country Skiing: Cross-country ski trails are found at Pine Lake State Park, just outside of 

Eldora. Just like snowmobiles, the unplowed path in the wintertime will create a safe, scenic route for 

skiers to travel.  

River Tubing: The proposed section of the trail will connect Gifford to the larger trail loop which 

passes right by the Rock-n-Row Adventures River Tubing. Trail users can hop off the path and enjoy 

floating down the Iowa River to beat the heat during the summer. 

 



B 
 

4. Define the quality of the site. (25 points) 

It is the goal of the managing trail entities to maintain the corridor outside of city boundaries as a linear 

wildlife corridor. To that end, a botanical survey was conducted in 2019 along the entire trail, which 

revealed a variety of threatened species in the area. This inventory helped to create a management plan 

which has better allowed the stewardship of the right-of-way for prairie and habitat restoration. 

Annually, a local contractor has been hired for vegetation management of the developed and 

undeveloped areas. Not only does this start the work to create an enjoyable scenic experience for the 

user, but this also ensures that the corridor does not become overgrown before development. 

This segment will connect downtown Eldora to the section of the trail that runs along the Iowa River 

Greenbelt, a scenic 42-mile stretch of river valley stretching from Alden to Union. The Iowa River 

Greenbelt offers diverse wildlife habitats, numerous recreational opportunities, and picturesque views. 

Environmentally, the expansion of this trail will help protect the greenbelt, in turn protecting the variety 

of rare and endangered plants and animals that call the Iowa River Greenbelt their home.  

 

5. Describe the economic benefits to the local area. (10 points) 

Eldora is home to many local businesses, museums, lodging facilities, and tourist attractions. This 

proposed trail extension will increase foot traffic in Eldora, in turn increasing the economy of Eldora’s 

local businesses. The Hardin County Fair is a big attraction every summer, and the fairgrounds are in the 

heart of Eldora. This trail expansion project will draw even more people to Eldora for the fair, increasing 

business in and around the fairgrounds. 

With the new trail extension, Eldora will be an attractive location for people to hop off the Iowa River’s 

Edge Trail and settle in for a long stay in the city. Eldora has a few lodging facilities, including the 

Indleside Bed & Breakfast, Eldora Motel, and the White House of Eldora. All these places to are locally 

owned, allowing overnight trail users to support local businesses while enjoying the exciting attractions 

the city has to offer. Also, Pine Lake State Park has cabins, campsites, and Airbnb locations for trail 

users who wish to stay in the park. 

For the day-tripping trail users, there are plenty of local attractions, including Eldora’s Railroad Museum 

and the Rock-n-Row Adventures river tubing and camping company. This trail expansion will increase 

business for Rock-n-Row Adventures, as many trail users seek outdoor adventure. Overall, the extension 

of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail to Eldora will greatly benefit the local economy in the area.  

 

6. Describe any special facilities for disabled users. (5 points) 

Hardin County understands the need to provide quality of life amenities that not only attract and retain 

families to its rural communities, but also create recreational opportunities that all of its residents can 

enjoy. The Iowa River’s Edge Trail will be free to the public and open to all ages, backgrounds, and 

abilities. The trail may be an especially valuable resource for older and disabled Iowans, as the gentle 

slope of the existing rail grade does not exceed 5%, making it an easily accessible amenity for 

transportation and outdoor recreation.  



B 
 

Managing agencies will further ensure the trail is available for appropriate other power-driven mobility 

devices and meet all ADA requirements. When fully completed, the 10-foot-wide concrete path will 

allow for easy and spacious wheelchair use. The parallel 5-foot soft path will accommodate faster users 

such as runners who do not wish to use the paved trail. Benches along the trail will provide relief for 

elderly and disabled trail users who could use a break; this is especially important in Eldora where more 

than 25% of the population is over the age of 60. 

 

7. Project “shovel readiness.” (25 points) 

The Hardin County Trails Commission received a 2018 Federal Recreational Trails grant for $425,000 

to complete paving and prepping of 2.5 miles of trail from Steamboat Rock to 215th Street north of 

Eldora. Another $375,000 State Recreational Trails grant request was accepted in 2019 that was used to 

continue this paving project, extending the trail from Edgington Ave in Eldora. That segment of the trail 

is currently in the early stages of the construction process. 

The Iowa River’s Edge Trail has already commenced its initial trail paving, having completed a one-

mile segment of trail near Steamboat Rock. The initial stretch of trail that was paved near Steamboat 

Rock was completed in the summer of 2018 and came in under budget by $125,000. We are confident 

that we would be able to start this proposed trail expansion and finish within two years. 

The Hardin County Trails Commission has already selected Snyder & Associates to be the engineering 

firm for these phases of the trail extension project. Designs to extend the trail to Hwy 175/Edgington 

Ave are already complete. Those plans would merely have to be updated to include the additional 2 

miles of proposed work along a similar type of terrain on the same former rail corridor without 

additional structures. The project is shovel ready, and work can begin as early as soon as funding is 

awarded. Receiving this $300,000 State Recreational Trails grant would be the final step before 

beginning construction on this phase of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail. 

 

8. Local funding for the project. (5 points) 

It is important to note that while this application does not have as much secured local funding as others, 

the ongoing work of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail has leveraged significant contributions from the private 

sector. Roughly $4,000 of local funds from the city of Eldora will be used for wayfinding signage along 

this portion of the trail and the previous phases. Additionally, nearly $300,000 of local and private 

funding has been secured and directed to the reconstruction of the bridge over the South Fork of the 

Iowa River and two other bridges within Hardin County (Phase 3). These are the next three bridges of 

the phased trail work with a total project cost of nearly $2 million. Additionally, over $250,000 of local 

funding has been raised to help with previous phases of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail. A COVID-19 

Relief application was submitted for this phase of the project. Additional state, federal, foundation, and 

private funding is already being sought to match this request in case COVID dollars are unavailable. 



C 
 

Item C - Map 



_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_
_̂

!(

_̂

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
!(

!(!( !(

!(Steamboat Rock

Eldora

Gifford

Union

Hardin County
Marshall County

Pine Lake State Park

Liscomb

Albion

Marshalltown

260th Street

Marshall County
Sta

te 
Hi

gh
wa

y1
4

State Highway175

US Highway20

Sta
te 

Hi
gh

wa
y3

30

State Highway96

State Highway14-175

Sta
te 

Hi
gh

wa
y2

14

Sta
te 

Hi
gh

wa
y2

99

US Highway30

Sta
te 

Hi
gh

wa
y1

4

Existing Trails

Proposed Paving Project

Future Phases
Funded Phases (under construction)

Iowa River

¯0 1.5 3 4.5 60.75
Miles

Bicycle Route

_̂
Completed Bridge
Funded Bridge (under construction)
Future Bridge

Iowa River's Edge Trail- Paving from Hwy 175 to 260th St

Trail paving fully funded in
 process of development 
including starred bridges

Proposed paving
project

Starred trail bridge
construction fully funded
in process of development

Trail corridor is maintained as
an interim hiking path creating
a continuous corridor to the
Iowa River with the rehabbed
bridges

C



D 
 

Item D - Sketch Plan 

 

 



E 
 

Item E - Digital Photographs 

 

Photos of the corridor to be paved 



E 
 

Item E - Digital Photographs  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Iowa River’s Edge Trail is actively being used in its interim developed state by hikers, fat tire 

bikers, snowmobilers and cross-country skiers. Paving the additional 2 miles and the current 

rehabilitation will open the corridor to more users and create a safer space to enjoy the outdoors. 



E 
 

Item E - Digital Photographs  

 

The proposed two miles to be constructed will match the quality and experience of previous 

phased work completed like the segment from another section of the Iowa River’s Edge Trail 

shown above.  

  



F 

Item F - Itemized Breakdown 

 

 

 

 

Budget was determined based on recent bids received on similar projects and using the average design 

and construction engineering costs found in the application packet. Construction costs also mirror the 

typical cost per miles of rolling terrain found in the State Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. We have found 

with previous paving projects along the River’s Edge Trail that it is more appropriate to use this estimate 

than a typical former railroad corridor due to the nature of the right-of-way traversing the Iowa River 

Greenbelt. While the total project cost is $1,000,000, we are planning to submit $2,000,000 in funding 

requests in case we do not receive COVID-19 Relief Funds. 

  

Funding Source Status Amount

State Recreational Trails Fund Anticipated 300,000.00$     

Federal Recreational Trails Fund Anticipated 300,000.00$     

REAP Grant (Eldora) Anticipated 75,000.00$      

Wellmark Anticipated 100,000.00$     

Doppelt Family Trail Development Fund Anticipated 10,000.00$      

Land and Water Conservation Fund Anticipated 115,000.00$     

Local foundations and fundraising Anticipated 100,000.00$     

Total 1,000,000.00$  



G 

Item G - Time Schedule 

  



H 

Item H - Official Endorsement 

STILL NEED 

 

  



J 

Item J – Adjacent Property Owners Narrative 

The Iowa River’s Edge Trail has been an evolving project for more than eight years as evidenced in the 

Marshalltown Times-Republican’s first published article in March of 2011. The news story covered the 

series of events that took place up to and at the Iowa Department of Transportation’s public meeting in 

Eldora. Many interested landowners and businesses serviced by the rail attended to learn more about the 

impending Iowa River Railroad abandonment and what it meant for them. Community members and 

local leaders voiced interest in a trail if rail service was no longer a viable option.  

In early spring of 2012, a large group of individuals representing city councils, county supervisors, 

cycling clubs, economic development corporations, businesses, healthcare industries, and many who 

were in attendance at the IDOT meeting the year before, gathered again. The Iowa River Railroad had 

officially filed to discontinue rail service along the corridor. Those attending the meeting were 

discussing the next steps for the right-of-way and whether a trail would be a good fit.  

By the summer of 2012, staff from Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation (INHF) had presented information 

to the Marshall County Supervisors at a formal supervisor’s meeting as well as meeting with them and 

representatives from Marshall County Conservation Board, Liscomb, Albion, and Marshalltown in a 

more formal public meeting atmosphere. INHF staff had also met by that time with Hardin County 

Supervisors, Hardin County Conservation Board, Union, Eldora, and Steamboat Rock to share more 

detailed information and to gauge community/public support for the project- and whether to proceed 

with acquisition. In May of 2012 all jurisdictions had agreed to file for a Notice of Interim Trail Use for 

the corridor.  

Community meetings were held in both Marshall and Hardin County throughout 2013. Nearly each 

meeting has been chronicled by the Times-Republican making even those that did not attend aware of 

the on-going trail planning. The Times-Republican’s editorial entitled, “Consider the benefits of 

developing a recreational trail,” or the two additional letters to the editor, “City council should vote yes 

to support the trail,” and “Major investments prove value over time,” are just some indicators of the 

acceptance and support the Iowa River Trail has been receiving.  

In February of 2014, the Hardin County Board of Supervisors officially established a County Trails 

Commission. The commission oversees the 22-mile segment of the future Iowa River Trail in Hardin 

County. They are tasked with a variety of duties that are vital to the continued development of the Iowa 

River Trail: fundraising, project planning, development of rules and regulations, management and 

maintenance, etc. 

The County Trails Commission meets bimonthly with TRAILS, Inc (Marshalltown/Marshall County’s 

mirroring collaboration) to create what is known as the Joint Committee. The Joint Committee meetings 

are open to the public. Minutes of the meeting are posted and shared with each jurisdiction along the 

Iowa River Trail.  

To date, there have been minimal concerns raised by adjacent landowners, and any concerns brought to 

us were immediately addressed.  



K 

Item K - Letters of support

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



K 

 



L 

Item L - Minority Impact Statement 

 



L 

 

























Moved by _________________, seconded by __________________ to adopt the following
Resolution:

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-______
 

WHEREAS, the Hardin County Board of Supervisors wishes to implement a more efficient
process to issue corrective action(s) to employees that report directly to the Board of
Supervisors.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF HARDIN
COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA:

1. The Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors shall have the authority to investigate
allegations of misconduct and issue corrective action(s) to employees that report
directly to the Board of Supervisors. 

2. The Chairperson may not terminate an employee unless approved by a majority of

the Board.

Passed and adopted this _____ day of ______________, 2021.

          _______________________________
          BJ Hoffman, Chairperson
          County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: _______________________________         _______________________________
     Jolene Pieters                                    Date
     Hardin County Auditor
























